
 
 

City of Baldwin City 
PO Box 86 

Baldwin City, Kansas 66006 
Council Meeting Agenda 

 

Baldwin City Community Center  
712 Chapel St     
Baldwin City, KS 66006 

TUESDAY 
August 5th, 2025  

7:00 PM 

                                     
 

 
A.  Call to Order-Mayor Casey Simoneau 
 
B.  Approval of Agenda 
 
C.  Consent Agenda  

1. Minutes 7.15.2025 
2. Scheduled Claims List  
 

D.  Public Comment: 
Members of the public are welcome to comment on items relating to City business not listed on this 
Agenda. Please stand and wait to be recognized by the Mayor. As a general practice, the comments may 
or may not be acted upon by the Council during the meeting, or Council may refer the items to staff for 
follow up. 
 
If you wish to comment on an item listed on the agenda, a sign-up sheet is provided for you to sign in and 
provide your address. You will be called on when the Agenda item of interest is under discussion by the 
Council.  
 
E.  Special Reports or Presentations   

Proclamation-Douglas County Community Foundation 
 

F.  Old Business 
1. Council Hiring Committee 
2. Brick Street Project-Brick Color 
 

G.  New Business 
1. Final Plat 
2. Rezone Ordinance 
3. STO Ordinance 
4. UPOC Ordinance 
5. Vision Zero Transportation Action Plan-Resolution 2025-17 
6. Contract for motel lot  



 
 

City of Baldwin City 
PO Box 86 

Baldwin City, Kansas 66006 
Council Meeting Agenda 

 

Baldwin City Community Center  
712 Chapel St     
Baldwin City, KS 66006 

TUESDAY 
August 5th, 2025  

7:00 PM 

                                     
 

 
H.  Council Committee Reports 

1. Budget and Finance - Scott Lauridsen/Cory Venable 
2. Community Development - Cory Venable/Susan Pitts 
3. Public Safety - Susan Pitts/Jay King 
4. Public Works and Utilities - Julie Constantinescu/Jay King 
5. Strategic Planning - Scott Lauridsen/Julie Constantinescu 

 
I.  City Administrator and Staff comments 
 
J.  Council and Mayor comments 

 
K. Executive Session 

  
L.  Adjourn 

 
City Council meets every first and third Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin Community Center.  Council work 
sessions are held the last Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin Community Center.  



City of Baldwin City 
Minutes  

Tuesday, July 15, 2025 
 Regular Council Meeting 

 
 

A. Call to Order  
The Baldwin City Council was called to Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin City Community 
Center, 712 Chapel Street, with Mayor Casey Simoneau presiding. 
 
Present were Council Members: Jay King, Susan Pitts, Scott Lauridsen, and Julie Constantinescu.  
  
Also, attending: Russ Harding-Interim City Administrator; Amara Packard-City Clerk; Shiloh 
Afonja-Deputy City Clerk; and Lynn Meador-Communications Director. 

 
B. Approval of Agenda  

Susan Pitts moved and Scott Lauridsen seconded to approve the agenda as presented. Motion carried 
with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.  

 
C. Consent Agenda  

Jay King moved and Scott Lauridsen seconded to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Motion 
carried with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.    
 
1.  Minutes - 7.01.25 
2.  Scheduled Claims List 
3.  Special Event-Baker University Move In 

 
D. Public Comment  

Jerry Smith-1308 High St.-asked if the 56 Highway alignment project was still moving forward.   
Mayor Simoneau stated that it is still being discussed and the city has submitted a request for them to 
increase the amount they are funding, but have not received a response yet.  
Jerry Smith asked if Mayor Simoneau was building a house and if he was connecting to any utilities, 
and if he was using the tax abatement. The city does not own any utilities in that location. The mayor 
is able to use the tax incentives just like any other citizen building a house in the city limits.   
 

E. Special Reports or Presentations        
  

F. Old Business  
1. Brick Street Project 

There was a survey with three different options with maple leaves, 99 people responded. Forty two 
percent voted in favor of the leaf from the city flag.  



Julie Constantinescu said that her Public Works Committee discussed this, and with the leaf 
potentially being in the middle of the intersection of 8th and High Street, the truck route needs to 
be established and enforced.   
There is an ordinance with a truck route using Lawrence Street, High Street, and 11th Street. The 
route would need to have the intersection of 11th and High Street reviewed to ensure trucks can 
make that turn. That discussion needs to be a priority.  
The council needs to make the decision on what color of brick to use. Council discussed using new 
brick for the maple leaf, and the old brick around the maple leaf so if they are able to use the old 
brick going forward, for the rest of the downtown streets, it would match.  
Jerry Smith-1308 High St.- said he saw stamped brick in a driveway, and is that a possibility for 
the streets.  
Jay King moved and Susan Pitts seconded to add the city flag leaf design into the intersection using 
the new brick as the leaf and old brick for the border. Motion carried with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no. 
 

2. Council Hiring Committee-Discussion 
Scott Lauridsen and Julie Constantinescu with the hiring committee, met with the League of 
Municipalities for the State of Kansas, regarding their history and what their process is in hiring a 
new city administrator. There was one other search firm proposal in the packet to see that they are 
comparable.    
There needs to be an updated job description drawn up to begin this process. The council would 
like to have the League present at the next council meeting to determine if this is the route the 
council would like to go.   
 

G. New Business  
1. Electric Rate Ordinance 1513 

There are three options for electric rate increase for the council to review. Council discussed which 
option would be easiest on the citizens. Option 1 would increase rates by 15% for July’s use and 
10% for September’s use. Option 2 would increase rates 25% for July’s use. Option 3 is a 10% 
increase with July’s use for residential customers, and 15% increase for demand users, and making 
the customer meter charge $25.00 instead of $12.00. Jay King expressed his concern of how this is 
going to affect many citizens and small businesses right now, and would like to see how each 
option would look for citizens.  
Susan Pitts moved and Julie Constantinescu second to approve Ordinance 1513 option 3 as 
presented. Motion carried with a vote 3 yes and 1 no.  
Roll call vote: Julie Constantinescu-yes, Scott Lauridsen-yes, Susan Pitts-yes, and Jay King-no. 
 

2. Pole Banner Discussion 
Dana Mullis, the Organization Director for the Chamber of Commerce, and the Director of the 
Main Street Program, showed the council the final designs of the pole banners. The design team 
along with the mural committee from the Lumberyard Arts Center, got the community involved for 
themes that reflected the City of Baldwin. The two local artists for the banners are Emma Bailey 
and Christina Maliki. The banners celebrate Baldwin City’s history, community service, veterans, 
schools, Baker, arts, and festivals.      
Julie Constantinescu said that these artists have put a lot of time and effort into these designs. The 
council is very happy with how they turned out.   



Julie Constantinescu moved and Jay King seconded to approve the pole banner designs that have 
been brought forward. Motion passes with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.  
  

3. Revenue Neutral-Discussion/Set Hearing Date If Exceeding Revenue Neutral 
The revenue neutral rate that the council must adopt or exceed is 38.943. That is a reduction of 4.4 
mills, or dollar value of $243,000.00. The city would need to reduce the mill levy rate by 17% 
unless they exceeded the revenue neutral rate. The first step in this process is deciding if the 
council wants to exceed the revenue neutral rate. If they choose to do so, they would also need to 
set a date for the hearing. The council is not obligated to anything at this step. This step essentially 
is to notify Douglas County.     
Scott Lauridsen moved and Susan Pitts seconded to approve the notice of revenue neutral intent as 
presented with the change of the county to Douglas, spelled correctly. Motion passes with a vote of 
4 yes and 0 no.  
 

H. Committee Reports 
1. Budget and Finance - Scott Lauridsen/Cory Venable     

● Electric Rate options 1-3 
● General Fund 
● Municipal Solar Energy 

Next meeting 7/18/2025 at 7:30am, second floor of City Hall 
  

2. Community Development - Cory Venable/Susan Pitts    
Next meeting will be 7/28/2025 at 4:00pm, second floor of City Hall 

 
3. Public Safety - Susan Pitts/Jay King   

Next meeting will be 8/12/2025 at 4:00pm, second floor of City Hall 
 

4. Public Works and Utilities - Julie Constantinescu/Jay King                                                                                     
● The new substation location is getting worked on, pad for transformer poured, poles for 

the substation line from Orange Street to the new sub site will be getting installed.  
● Sediment in the water chemicals used for generators 
● Work on golf course parking lot has started 
● Citywide cleanup went well, fall cleanup is the weekend prior to the Maple Leaf Festival 
● Public works has been working on the old trailer park brush and tall grass 
● Met with Green Environmental about trash trucks damaging the chip and seal in the 

culdesacs  
● Community solar projects 
● Going forward all Public Works and Utilities Committee meetings will be at the Public 

Works Facility conference room 
Next meeting will be 8/14/2025 at 9:00am, Public Works Conference Room   

     
5. Strategic Planning-Scott Lauridsen/Julie Constantinescu    

Next meeting TBD at 2:00pm, second floor of City Hall 
 



I. City Administrator and Staff Comments  
Russ Harding stated he has received letters from concerned citizens regarding the length of time to 
shoot fireworks off.  
Mayor Simoneau has sent this to the CDC to be discussed.     
Jay King suggested having a designated area to shoot off fireworks prior to the 1st of July.  
  

J. Council & Mayor Comments       
Mayor Simoneau wanted to let everyone know for full transparency, that the program he is involved in 
with the new construction of his house, was enacted prior to him being mayor. He also stated that the 
reason he is not on city utilities is because the city does not own those utilities and to purchase that 
area would be hundreds of thousands of dollars to purchase. He would rather be on city utilities.   
 

K. Executive Session    
Scott Lauridsen moved and Jay King seconded to go into executive session with the council, the 
mayor, acting city administrator and our city attorney for attorney client privilege until 8:50. Motion 
passes with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.  
 
Mayor Simoneau called the meeting back to order at 8:50. 
 
Scott Lauridsen moved and Susan Pitts seconded to go back into executive session with the same 
group, for the same reasons, back at 9:00. 
 
Mayor Simoneau called the meeting back to order at 9:00.    
 

L. Adjourn 
Julie Constantinescu moved and Susan seconded to adjourn the regular meeting. Motion passes 4-0. 
Time: 9:00 p.m. 

Attest: 
 
_________________________________         

Amara M. Packard  
City Clerk 





































































PROCLAMATION 
by Baldwin City Council 

 

 
WHEREAS, Douglas County Community Foundation (DCCF) has since 2000 been a public 
charitable organization for the people of Douglas County, including the cities of Eudora, Baldwin 
City, Lawrence and Lecompton; and, 
 
WHEREAS, DCCF was founded thanks to a major gift from the late Tensie Oldfather of Lawrence. 
Tensie, who gave generously to a wide variety of area causes, hoped that her example would 
attract other gifts to the foundation. “It’s for anyone who wants to help,” she said; and 
 
WHEREAS, DCCF is a community leader with the mission to connect the diverse citizens and 
communities of Douglas County through charitable action, and to create permanent 
philanthropic resources for the current and future needs of our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, one of the greatest ways to ensure a strong community, economic vitality, 
educational success, and effective community leadership is through the active presence of a 
community foundation that allows for local community-based endowments; and,  
 
WHEREAS, DCCF provides beneficial grants to our communities, supports critical community 
causes and efforts, strengthens nonprofit services, and makes our community stronger; and, 
 
WHEREAS, DCCF, over its 25-year history, has granted more than $668,000 to Baldwin City nonprofit 

organizations, including multiple grants for projects including the Lumberyard Arts Center and 
Baldwin City Library; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is critical to set aside a time to recognize the value and impact of community 
foundations on a statewide, regional and local level for the investment, partnership, and 
leadership they create across many of Kansas’s communities;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Simoneau, do hereby proclaim, as: 
 

DCCF and Baldwin City - 25 years of charitable action week 
 

and encourage all citizens to recognize and support the impact that Douglas County Community 
Foundation and  its donors have in our community.   
 
 





mailto:garhf@st-tel.net
mailto:louisysusi@yahoo.com


mailto:cityclerk@independenceks.gov
mailto:herington.info@gmail.com
mailto:jpruetting@gardnerkansas.gov


mailto:psouthwick@anthonykansas.org
mailto:cityclerk@concordiaks.org
mailto:kristie@garnettks.net
mailto:cityclerk@girardkansas.gov
mailto:cityclerk@independenceks.gov
mailto:conrardy@cityofkingman.com
mailto:rschechter@lyonsks.org


mailto:beilts@cityoflarned.com
mailto:cityclk@bluevalley.net
mailto:lkramer@cityofprattks.com
mailto:information@coffeyville.com
mailto:debbie@cityofherington.com
mailto:jetmore@fairpoint.net
mailto:cityclerk@sctelcom.net
mailto:tstorey@louisburgkansas.gov
mailto:oakleyclk@st-tel.net


mailto:srush@oberlinkansas.gov
mailto:kbohon@roelandpark.org










ELWOOD ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, DOUGLAS COUNTY, KANSAS

PRELIMINARY



Published in the Lawrence Journal World on the ___ day of _____________, 2025 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1514 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTY FROM PLANNED 

GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (CP-2) TO TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

(R-2), ALL WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, 

KANSAS. 

WHEREAS, application has been made by a representative of the owner to rezone certain 

property within the City of Baldwin City, Kansas; and 

WHEREAS, proper notice has been given by publication of legal notice and by mailed notice to 

surrounding property owners in conformance with K.S.A. 12-757; and 

WHEREAS, the Baldwin City Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 8, 2025 

regarding the application and, by a 3-0 unanimous vote of the members present, recommended 

the property in question be rezoned. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS: 

Section 1. That the property, situated north of the US Highway 56 between Washington 

Street and Eisenhower Street in the City of Baldwin City, Douglas County, Kansas, and 

described as follows:  

Lots 1, 2, 4, & 5, Block 1, of the Elwood Addition. 

be, and the same is, hereby ordered rezoned from its present zoning district classification of (CP-

2) Planned General Commercial District to (R-2) Two-Family Residential District. 

 

SECTION 2. The Zoning Administrator of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas is hereby ordered 

and directed to cause said designation to be made on the Official Zoning Map of said City in his 

or her custody and to show the property herein described to be zoned “R-2” Two-Family 

Residential District.  

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE.  This Ordinance shall take effect on its 

passage and upon its publication as required by law. 

Passed by the City Council this 5th day of August, 2025 

 

 



___________________________________________ 

Casey Simoneau, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: ___________________________________ 

                 Amara Packard, City Clerk 



 Published in _________________ on the _____ day of ______________, 2025 

ORDINANCE NO. 1515 
 

     AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER XIV, ARTICLE 1, SECTION 14-101 OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY INCORPORATING THE STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE 
FOR KANSAS CITIES 
 
 WHEREAS, the “Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities” published by the League of 
Kansas Municipalities has a 52nd Edition published in 2024. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That Section 14-101, Incorporating Standard Traffic Ordinance be changed to read: 

 
“INCORPORATING STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE:  There is hereby 
incorporated by reference for the purpose of regulating traffic within the corporate 
limits of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas, that certain standard traffic ordinance 
known as the “Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities,” 2025 52nd Edition, 
prepared and published in book form by the League of Kansas Municipalities, 
Topeka, Kansas save and except such articles, sections, parts or portions as are 
hereafter omitted, deleted, modified or changed, such incorporation being authorized 
by K.S.A. 12-3009 through 12-3012, inclusive, as amended.  No fewer than three 
copies of said standard ordinance shall be marked or stamped “Official Copy as 
Incorporated by the Code of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas,” with all sections or 
portions thereof intended to be omitted or changed clearly marked to show any such 
omission or change and to which shall be attached a copy of this section and filed 
with the city clerk to be open to inspection and available to the public at all 
reasonable hours.” 
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the City 
Council, its approval by the Mayor and its publication in the official city newspaper. 

 
 Passed by the City Council this _______ of _______________, 2025. 
 
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Casey Simoneau, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:    
 
___________________________ 
Amara M. Packard, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
Shaye Downing, City Attorney 

 



Published in the __________________ on the ______ day of ______________, 2025 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1516 
 

  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, AMENDING SECTION 11-101 
(“INCORPORATING UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE”) OF ARTICLE 1 (“UNIFORM PUBLIC 
OFFENSE CODE”) OF CHAPTER XI (“PUBLIC OFFENSES”) OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BALDWIN CITY 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Body of the City of Baldwin City, 
Kansas, as follows: 
 
Section 1. That Section 11-101 of Article 1 (Uniform Offense Code), Chapter XI (Public Offenses) 

of the Code of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas be amended to read as follows: 
 

“INCORPORATING UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE.  There is hereby 
incorporated by reference for the purpose of regulating public offenses within the 
corporate limits of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas, that certain code known as the 
“Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities,” 41st Edition, (UPOC) prepared and 
published in book form by the League of Kansas Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas, save 
and except such articles, sections, parts or portions as are hereafter omitted, deleted, 
modified or changed.  No fewer than three copies of said Uniform Public Offense Code 
shall be marked or stamped “Official Copy as incorporated by the Code of the City of 
Baldwin City, Kansas,” with all sections or portions thereof intended to be omitted or 
changed clearly marked to show any such omission or change and to which shall be 
attached a copy of this section, and filed with the city clerk to be open for inspection and 
available to the public at all reasonable hours.” 
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the City 
Council; its approval by the Mayor and its publication in the official city newspaper. 

 
 Passed by the City Council on this the         day of                    , 2025. 
   
 
_____________________________ 
Casey Simoneau, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Amara M. Packard, City Clerk 
 
  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY KANSAS ADOPTING THE VISION ZERO 
TRANSPORTATION SAFETY ACTION PLAN IN THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS 

WHEREAS, the City of Baldwin City, Kansas, is authorized to coordinate development in 
accordance with the present and future needs of the City, to consider the health, safety, and 
prosperity for bicyclists, pedestrians, transit riders, motorists, and all other users of the 
transportation network, and its rights of way in a manner that balances user needs and is 
consistent with the surrounding community;  

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the need to establish a vision to eliminate traffic fatalities and 
serious injuries in Baldwin City through a comprehensive strategy and implementation action 
plan (Vision Zero Transportation Safety Action Plan).  

WHEREAS, the City acknowledges the Vision Zero Transportation Action Plan was developed 
through a public process that recognizes the critical need to develop a region where streets are 
designed for people of all ages and abilities.  

WHEREAS, the Vision Zero Transportation Safety Action Plan commits to maintain zero 
fatalities and serious injuries in the roadway for Baldwin City.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS: 

SECTION 1. The governing body hereby adopts the Vision Zero Transportation Safety Action 
Plan affixed hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.  

SECTION 2. This Resolution and Plan shall be in force and effect after adoption on the date set 
forth below.  

SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

 ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas on August 5th, 2025.  

 

        APPROVED: 

 

____________________________________ 

ATTEST:                                                        Casey Simoneau, Mayor 
       
 
___________________________________ 

Amara Packard, City Clerk 












	B. 8.5.2025 Agenda.pdf
	A.  Call to Order-Mayor Casey Simoneau 
	B.  Approval of Agenda 
	D.  Public Comment: 
	E.  Special Reports or Presentations ​ 
	F.  Old Business 
	G.  New Business 
	L.  Adjourn 

	C.1. Minutes 7.15.2025 .pdf
	C.2. Scheduled Claims List.pdf
	E. Baldwin City DCCF Proclamation 2025.06.25.pdf
	F.1. LEAPS Municipal References 2025 -Baldwin City.pdf
	F.2.a-d Brick Colors
	G.1. Elwood Addition Final Plat Updated.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 OF 1


	G.2. Ord #1514 Rezone Washington-Eisenhower Property.pdf
	G.3. Ordinance 1515- 2025 STO Traffic Ord.pdf
	G.4. Ordinance 1516 - 2025 Uniform Public Offense Code (UPOC).pdf
	G.5.b. 2025-17 Vision Zero Baldwin Resolution.pdf
	G.6. Motel Lot Signed Contract.pdf

